# Terminal region enlargement of a stabilizing NMPC design for a multicopter

Huu Thien Nguyen<sup>1\*</sup>, Ngoc Thinh Nguyen<sup>2</sup>, and Ionela Prodan<sup>3</sup>.

<sup>1</sup>SYSTEC – ARISE, University of Porto, Porto, Portugal

<sup>2</sup>University of Luebeck, Institute for Robotics and Cognitive Systems, Luebeck, Germany

<sup>3</sup>Université Grenoble Alpes, Grenoble INP<sup>†</sup>, LCIS, F-26000, Valence, France. <sup>†</sup> Institute of Engineering and Management Univ. Grenoble Alpes.

Nov 16, 2023

\*Contact: huu-thien.nguyen@ieee.org.

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# Outline

# Introduction

- 2 Thrust-propelled vehicles with feedback linearization local controller
- ③ Terminal region enlargement

### ④ Simulation

- Simulation scenarios and parameters
- Simulation results

### **5** Discussions and Future work

# Table of Contents

# Introduction

- 2 Thrust-propelled vehicles with feedback linearization local controller
- 3 Terminal region enlargement

### 4 Simulation

- Simulation scenarios and parameters
- Simulation results

### 5 Discussions and Future work

( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( )

# Introduction – NMPC with terminal ingredients

### NMPC problem formulation

$$\begin{split} \bar{\mathbf{u}}_t^*(\cdot) &= \arg\min_{\bar{\mathbf{u}}_t(\cdot)} \int_t^{t+T_p} \ell(\bar{\mathbf{x}}_t(s), \bar{\mathbf{u}}_t(s)) ds + F(\bar{\mathbf{x}}_t(t+T_p)), \\ \text{subject to:} \quad \dot{\bar{\mathbf{x}}}_t &= f(\bar{\mathbf{x}}_t, \bar{\mathbf{u}}_t), \\ \bar{\mathbf{u}}_t(s) \in \mathcal{U}, \ s \in [t, t+T_p], \\ \bar{\mathbf{x}}_t(t) &= \mathbf{x}(t), \\ \bar{\mathbf{x}}_t(t+T_p) \in \mathcal{X}_f. \end{split}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \mathcal{U}: \text{ input constraint set} \\ \mathcal{X}_t: \text{ terminal state constraint set} \end{aligned}$$

 $\mathcal{X}:$  state constraint set

 $\mathcal{X}_{f}$ 



Nov 16, 2023

<sup>1</sup>Grüne and Pannek 2017; Chen and Allgöwer 1998

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

### Four conditions that ensure the asymptotic stability

- - $[F(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) F(\mathbf{x}(k))] + \ell(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(k)) \le 0 \text{ (discrete)}$

• 
$$\frac{dF}{dt}(f(\mathbf{x}(t)) + \ell(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(t))) \le 0$$
 (continuous)

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>David Q. Mayne et al. (2000). "Constrained Model Predictive Control: Stability and Optimality". In: Automatica 36.6, pp. 789–814. DOI: 10.1016/ \$0005-1098(99)00214-9

### Four conditions that ensure the asymptotic stability

```
\textcircled{0} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_f \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{closed}, \hspace{0.1in} 0 \in \mathcal{X}_f \text{, and} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_f \subset \mathcal{X}
```

```
  ( )  \forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f, \ \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) \in \mathcal{U}
```

•  $[F(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) - F(\mathbf{x}(k))] + \ell(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(k)) \le 0 \text{ (discrete)}$ 

• 
$$\frac{dF}{dt}(f(\mathbf{x}(t)) + \ell(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(t))) \le 0 \text{ (continuous)}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>David Q. Mayne et al. (2000). "Constrained Model Predictive Control: Stability and Optimality". In: Automatica 36.6, pp. 789–814. DOI: 10.1016/ \$0005-1098(99)00214-9

### Four conditions that ensure the asymptotic stability

- $\textcircled{0} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_f \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{closed}, \hspace{0.1in} \textcircled{0} \in \mathcal{X}_f , \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{and} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_f \subset \mathcal{X}$
- $( ) \forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f, \ \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) \in \mathcal{U}$
- - $[F(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) F(\mathbf{x}(k))] + \ell(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(k)) \le 0 \text{ (discrete)}$

• 
$$\frac{dF}{dt}(f(\mathbf{x}(t)) + \ell(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(t))) \le 0 \text{ (continuous)}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>David Q. Mayne et al. (2000). "Constrained Model Predictive Control: Stability and Optimality". In: Automatica 36.6, pp. 789–814. DOI: 10.1016/ \$0005-1098(99)00214-9

### Four conditions that ensure the asymptotic stability

$$\textcircled{0} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_{f} \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{closed}, \hspace{0.1in} \textcircled{0} \in \mathcal{X}_{f}, \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{and} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_{f} \subset \mathcal{X}$$

**2** 
$$\forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f$$
,  $\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) \in \mathcal{U}$ 

$$\mathbf{S} \ orall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f$$
,  $f(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) \in \mathcal{X}_f$ 

$$\forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f, \ F(\mathbf{x}, \kappa_f(\mathbf{x})) + \ell(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) \leq 0$$

• 
$$[F(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) - F(\mathbf{x}(k))] + \ell(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(k)) \le 0$$
 (discrete)

• 
$$\frac{dF}{dt}(f(\mathbf{x}(t)) + \ell(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(t))) \le 0 \text{ (continuous)}$$

<sup>2</sup>David Q. Mayne et al. (2000). "Constrained Model Predictive Control: Stability and Optimality". In: *Automatica* 36.6, pp. 789–814. DOI: 10.1016/ ≤ 0005-1098(99)00214-9

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

### Four conditions that ensure the asymptotic stability

$$\textcircled{0} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_{f} \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{closed}, \hspace{0.1in} \textcircled{0} \in \mathcal{X}_{f}, \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{and} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_{f} \subset \mathcal{X}$$

**2** 
$$\forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f$$
,  $\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) \in \mathcal{U}$ 

$$egin{array}{lll} egin{array}{lll} egin{array}{llll} egin{array}{lll} egin{array}{lll} egin{arr$$

•  $[F(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) - F(\mathbf{x}(k))] + \ell(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(k)) \le 0$  (discrete)

• 
$$\frac{dF}{dt}(f(\mathbf{x}(t)) + \ell(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(t))) \le 0$$
 (continuous)

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>David Q. Mayne et al. (2000). "Constrained Model Predictive Control: Stability and Optimality". In: Automatica 36.6, pp. 789–814. DOI: 10.1016/ \$0005-1098(99)00214-9

### Four conditions that ensure the asymptotic stability

$$\textcircled{0} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_f \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{closed}, \hspace{0.1in} \textcircled{0} \in \mathcal{X}_f, \hspace{0.1in} \mathsf{and} \hspace{0.1in} \mathcal{X}_f \subset \mathcal{X}$$

**2** 
$$\forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f$$
,  $\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) \in \mathcal{U}$ 

$$egin{array}{lll} egin{array}{lll} egin{array}{llll} egin{array}{lll} egin{array}{lll} egin{arr$$

$$\forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f, \ \bar{F}(\mathbf{x}, \kappa_f(\mathbf{x})) + \ell(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) \leq 0$$

• 
$$[F(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) - F(\mathbf{x}(k))] + \ell(\mathbf{x}(k), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(k)) \le 0 \text{ (discrete)}$$

• 
$$\frac{dF}{dt}(f(\mathbf{x}(t)) + \ell(\mathbf{x}(t), \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}(t))) \le 0$$
 (continuous)

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>David Q. Mayne et al. (2000). "Constrained Model Predictive Control: Stability and Optimality". In: *Automatica* 36.6, pp. 789–814. DOI: 10.1016/ ≤ D > 4 (D >

# Challenges

### How to design such a terminal set $\mathcal{X}_f$ ?

- Chen and Allgöwer 1998 systemically solve an optimization problem to obtain a terminal set with no systematic way to tune the size of set.
- N. T. Nguyen, Prodan, and Lefevre 2021 employ the feedback linearization as the local controller and construct the terminal set for multicopters.
- Eyüboğlu and Lazar 2022 transform constraints into LMIs and solve them with MATLAB.
- Comelli et al. 2023 replace the terminal set with a pair of simpler inner-outer sets that are unnecessary to be invariant.

# Motivation

### How to (maximally) enlarge that terminal set?

- De Doná et al. 2002 use a saturated linear feedback controller as a local controller and modify the terminal ingredients based on their new local controller.
- Cannon, Kouvaritakis, and Deshmukh 2004 use the concept of partial invariant sets and solve offline linear programming problems to maximize their volumes.
- Limon, Alamo, and Camacho 2005 compute the sequence of reachable sets using the inner-approximations of one-step sets to construct a contractive terminal set.
- Brunner, Lazar, and Allgower 2013 compute the terminal set as a convex hull of the translated and scaled invariant sets along the predicted trajectory.

# Motivation

### How to (maximally) enlarge that terminal set?

- De Doná et al. 2002 use a saturated linear feedback controller as a local controller and modify the terminal ingredients based on their new local controller.
- Cannon, Kouvaritakis, and Deshmukh 2004 use the concept of partial invariant sets and solve offline linear programming problems to maximize their volumes.
- Limon, Alamo, and Camacho 2005 compute the sequence of reachable sets using the inner-approximations of one-step sets to construct a contractive terminal set.
- Brunner, Lazar, and Allgower 2013 compute the terminal set as a convex hull of the translated and scaled invariant sets along the predicted trajectory.

### Problem ?

Relying on optimization approach  $\Rightarrow$  computationally intractable.

イロト 不得下 イヨト イヨト

э

# Motivation

### Semi-globally asymptotic stability

A system is semi-globally stabilizable<sup>3</sup> to an equilibrium point  $x_e$  by means of a class  $\mathcal{F}$  of feedback control laws if, for any a priori determined compact set  $\mathcal{X}_0$  of initial conditions, there exists a control law in  $\mathcal{F}$  that makes  $x_e$  asymptotically stable with a domain of attraction that contains  $\mathcal{X}_0$ .



<sup>3</sup> J H Braslavsky and R H Middleton (1996). "Global and Semi-Global Stabilizability in Certain Cascade Nonlinear Systems". In: IEEE Transactions on Automatic Control 41.6, p. 6. DOI: 10.1109/9.506242

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# Table of Contents

# Introduction

## 2 Thrust-propelled vehicles with feedback linearization local controller

### 3 Terminal region enlargement

### 4 Simulation

- Simulation scenarios and parameters
- Simulation results

### 5 Discussions and Future work

(B)

# Multicopter dynamical model

$$\begin{bmatrix} \ddot{x} \\ \ddot{y} \\ \ddot{z} \end{bmatrix} = \underbrace{ \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \\ -g \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} c(\phi)s(\theta)c(\psi) + s(\phi)s(\psi) \\ c(\phi)s(\theta)s(\psi) - s(\phi)c(\psi) \\ c(\phi)c(\theta) \end{bmatrix} T}_{h(\mathbf{u},\psi)}$$

• 
$$\boldsymbol{\xi} \triangleq [x, y, z]^{\top}$$
: 3D position

- g: gravity
- $(\phi, \theta, \psi)$ : Euler angles
- $T \in \mathbb{R}_+$ : normalized input thrust



# Multicopter dynamical model

$$\begin{bmatrix} \ddot{x} \\ \ddot{y} \\ \ddot{z} \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ 0 \\ -g \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} c(\phi)s(\theta)c(\psi) + s(\phi)s(\psi) \\ c(\phi)s(\theta)s(\psi) - s(\phi)c(\psi) \\ c(\phi)c(\theta) \end{bmatrix} T$$
  
•  $\boldsymbol{\xi} \triangleq [x, y, z]^{\top}$ : 3D position  
•  $g$ : gravity  
•  $(\phi, \theta, \psi)$ : Euler angles  
•  $T \in \mathbb{R}_+$ : normalized input thrust

$$\dot{\mathbf{x}} = f(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{u})$$

$$\bullet \mathbf{x} \triangleq \begin{bmatrix} \boldsymbol{\xi}^{\top}, \dot{\boldsymbol{\xi}}^{\top} \end{bmatrix}^{\top} \in \mathbb{R}^{6}: \text{ state}$$

$$\bullet \mathbf{u} \triangleq [T, \phi, \theta]^{\top} \in \mathbb{R}^{3}: \text{ input}$$

$$\bullet f(\cdot) \triangleq [\dot{\boldsymbol{\xi}}^{\top}, h^{\top}(\mathbf{u}, \psi)]^{\top}$$

$$\mathbf{u}(t) \in \mathcal{U} = \left\{ (T, \phi, \theta) : 0 \le T \le T_{\max}, |\phi|, |\theta| \le \epsilon_{\max} \right\},\$$

$$\mathbf{x}_e = \mathbf{0}, \ \mathbf{u}_e = [g, 0, 0]^+.$$

Э

# Feedback linearization<sup>4</sup>

$$\mathbf{u}_{\mathrm{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi) \triangleq [T_{\mathrm{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}),\phi_{\mathrm{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi),\theta_{\mathrm{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi)]^{\top}$$

• 
$$\psi$$
: yaw angle

•  $\mu_{\xi} \triangleq [\mu_x, \mu_y, \mu_z]^{\top}$ : virtual control input

$$\begin{split} T_{\rm FL}(\mu_{\xi}) &= \sqrt{\mu_x^2 + \mu_y^2 + (\mu_z + g)^2} \\ \phi_{\rm FL}(\mu_{\xi};\psi) &= \arcsin\left(\frac{\mu_x s(\psi) - \mu_y c(\psi)}{\sqrt{\mu_x^2 + \mu_y^2 + (\mu_z + g)^2}}\right) \\ \theta_{\rm FL}(\mu_{\xi};\psi) &= \arctan\left(\frac{\mu_x c(\psi) + \mu_y s(\psi)}{\mu_z + g}\right) \end{split}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# Feedback linearization<sup>4</sup>

$$\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi) \triangleq [T_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}),\phi_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi),\theta_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi)]^{\top}$$
•  $\psi$ : yaw angle  
•  $\mu_{\xi} \triangleq [\mu_{x},\mu_{y},\mu_{z}]^{\top}$ : virtual control input  

$$T_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}) = \sqrt{\mu_{x}^{2} + \mu_{y}^{2} + (\mu_{z} + g)^{2}}$$

$$\phi_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi};\psi) = \arcsin\left(\frac{\mu_{x}s(\psi) - \mu_{y}c(\psi)}{\mu_{y}c(\psi)}\right)$$

$$T_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}) = \sqrt{\mu_x^2 + \mu_y^2 + (\mu_z + g)^2}$$

$$\phi_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}; \psi) = \arcsin\left(\frac{\mu_x s(\psi) - \mu_y c(\psi)}{\sqrt{\mu_x^2 + \mu_y^2 + (\mu_z + g)^2}}\right)$$

$$\theta_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}; \psi) = \arctan\left(\frac{\mu_x c(\psi) + \mu_y s(\psi)}{\mu_z + g}\right)$$

$$\mathsf{M}_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}; \psi) = \arctan\left(\frac{\mu_x c(\psi) + \mu_y s(\psi)}{\mu_z + g}\right)$$

$$\mathsf{M}_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}; \psi) = \operatorname{Arctan}\left(\frac{\mu_x c(\psi) + \mu_y s(\psi)}{\mu_z + g}\right)$$

$$\mathsf{M}_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}; \psi) = \operatorname{Arctan}\left(\frac{\mu_x c(\psi) + \mu_y s(\psi)}{\mu_z + g}\right)$$

If  $\mu_z \geq -g$ :

<sup>4</sup>Nzoc Thinh Nguven, Ionela Prodan, and Laurent Lefèvre (June 2020). "Flat Trajectory Design and Tracking with Saturation Guarantees: A Nano-Drone Application". In: International Journal of Control 93.6, pp. 1266-1279. DOI: 10.1080/00207179.2018.1502474 イロト 不得下 イヨト イヨト э

Huu Thien Nguven et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

 $\dot{\mathbf{x}} = A\mathbf{x} + B\mu_{\xi},$ 

# Feedback linearization as a local controller in NMPC

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi) &\triangleq [T_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}), \phi_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi), \theta_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi)]^{\top} \\ \text{with } \mu_{\xi} &\triangleq [\mu_{x}, \mu_{y}, \mu_{z}]^{\top} \text{: virtual control input} \end{split}$$

$$\begin{split} \dot{\mathbf{x}} &= A\mathbf{x} + B\mu_{\xi},\\ \text{with } A &= \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} & \mathbf{I}_{3}\\ \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} & \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} \end{bmatrix} \text{ and } B = [\mathbf{0}_{3\times3}, \mathbf{I}_{3}]^{\top} \end{split}$$

# Feedback linearization as a local controller in NMPC

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi) &\triangleq [T_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}), \phi_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi), \theta_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi)]^{\top} \\ \text{with } \mu_{\xi} &\triangleq [\mu_x, \mu_y, \mu_z]^{\top} : \text{ virtual control input} \end{split}$$

$$\begin{split} \dot{\mathbf{x}} &= A\mathbf{x} + B\mu_{\xi},\\ \text{with } A &= \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} & \mathbf{I}_{3}\\ \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} & \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} \end{bmatrix} \text{ and } B = [\mathbf{0}_{3\times3}, \mathbf{I}_{3}]^{\top} \end{split}$$

$$\mu_{\xi} = \mathbf{x}_e + K\mathbf{x} \stackrel{\mathbf{x}_e = \mathbf{0}}{=} K\mathbf{x} \Rightarrow \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) \triangleq \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{FL}}(K\mathbf{x}, \psi)$$

# Feedback linearization as a local controller in NMPC

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi) &\triangleq [T_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi}), \phi_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi), \theta_{\mathsf{FL}}(\mu_{\xi},\psi)]^{\top} \\ \text{with } \mu_{\xi} &\triangleq [\mu_{x}, \mu_{y}, \mu_{z}]^{\top} \text{: virtual control input} \end{split}$$

$$\begin{split} \dot{\mathbf{x}} &= A\mathbf{x} + B\mu_{\xi},\\ \text{with } A &= \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} & \mathbf{I}_{3}\\ \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} & \mathbf{0}_{3\times3} \end{bmatrix} \text{ and } B = [\mathbf{0}_{3\times3}, \mathbf{I}_{3}]^{\top} \end{split}$$

$$\mu_{\xi} = \mathbf{x}_e + K\mathbf{x} \stackrel{\mathbf{x}_e = \mathbf{0}}{=} K\mathbf{x} \Rightarrow \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) \triangleq \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{FL}}(K\mathbf{x}, \psi)$$

$$K = \begin{bmatrix} K_{p_x} & 0 & 0 & K_{d_x} & 0 & 0\\ 0 & K_{p_y} & 0 & 0 & K_{d_y} & 0\\ 0 & 0 & K_{p_z} & 0 & 0 & K_{d_z} \end{bmatrix}$$

 $\dot{\mathbf{x}} = (A + BK)\mathbf{x} = A_K\mathbf{x}$ 

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# Problem set up – NMPC with terminal ingredients

### Stage cost

$$\ell(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{u}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_Q^2 + \|\mathbf{u} - \mathbf{u}_e\|_R^2, \quad Q \in \mathbb{S}_{++}^6, R \in \mathbb{S}_+^3: \text{ to be defined}$$

#### Terminal cost

$$F(\mathbf{x}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_P^2, \quad P \in \mathbb{S}_{++}^6$$
: obtained by solving  $A_K^\top P + PA_K + M = \mathbf{0}$ 

#### Terminal set

$$\mathcal{X}_f = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 : \mathbf{x}^\top P \mathbf{x} \le \delta \}, \text{ with } \delta = \lambda_{\min}(P) r^2, \ r^2 = \min_{q \in \{x, y, z\}} \left\{ \frac{U_q^2}{K_{pq}^2 + K_{dq}^2} \right\}$$

<sup>°</sup>Ngoc Thinh Nguyen, Ionela Prodan, and Laurent Lefevre (2021). "Stability Guarantees for Translational Thrust-Propelled Vehicles Dynamics Through NMPC Designs". In: IEEE Transactions on Control Systems Technology 29, pp. 207–219. DOI: 10.1109/TCST.2020.20731464 伊 + モミト モ シー モークへ や

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

# Problem set up – NMPC with terminal ingredients

### Stage cost

$$\ell(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{u}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_Q^2 + \|\mathbf{u} - \mathbf{u}_e\|_R^2, \quad Q \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++}, R \in \mathbb{S}^3_+: \text{ to be defined}$$

### **Terminal cost**

$$F(\mathbf{x}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_P^2, \quad P \in \mathbb{S}_{++}^6$$
: obtained by solving  $A_K^\top P + PA_K + M = \mathbf{0}$ 

#### Terminal set

$$\mathcal{X}_f = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 : \mathbf{x}^\top P \mathbf{x} \le \delta \}, \text{ with } \delta = \lambda_{\min}(P) r^2, \ r^2 = \min_{q \in \{x, y, z\}} \left\{ \frac{U_q^2}{K_{pq}^2 + K_{dq}^2} \right\}$$

<sup>3</sup>Ngoc Thinh Nguyen, Ionela Prodan, and Laurent Lefevre (2021). "Stability Guarantees for Translational Thrust-Propelled Vehicles Dynamics Through NMPC Designs". In: IEEE Transactions on Control Systems Technology 29, pp. 207–219. DOI: 10.1109/TCST.2020.207±146 < ⑦ ▶ < 注 ▶ 注 → 2 ◆ ○ ○ ○

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

# Problem set up - NMPC with terminal ingredients

### Stage cost

$$\ell(\mathbf{x},\mathbf{u}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_Q^2 + \|\mathbf{u} - \mathbf{u}_e\|_R^2, \quad Q \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++}, R \in \mathbb{S}^3_+: \text{ to be defined}$$

### **Terminal cost**

$$F(\mathbf{x}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_P^2, \quad P \in \mathbb{S}_{++}^6$$
: obtained by solving  $A_K^\top P + PA_K + M = \mathbf{0}$ 

#### Terminal set<sup>s</sup>

$$\mathcal{X}_f = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 : \mathbf{x}^\top P \mathbf{x} \le \delta \}, \text{ with } \delta = \lambda_{\min}(P) r^2, \ r^2 = \min_{q \in \{x, y, z\}} \left\{ \frac{U_q^2}{K_{pq}^2 + K_{dq}^2} \right\}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# NMPC with terminal ingredients

#### Boundness of the FL local controller

$$\forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 : \mathbf{x}^\top P \mathbf{x} \le \delta \}, \text{ with } \delta = \lambda_{\min}(P) r^2, \ r^2 = \min_{q \in \{x, y, z\}} \left\{ \frac{U_q^2}{K_{pq}^2 + K_{dq}^2} \right\}:$$

 $\|\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) - \mathbf{u}_e\|^2 \leq \mathbf{x}^\top (K^\top K + 2\Gamma) \mathbf{x}$ 

$$\Gamma = \frac{1}{(-U_z + g)^2} K_{xy}^{\top} K_{xy}$$
$$K_{xy} = \begin{bmatrix} K_{p_x} & 0 & 0 & K_{d_x} & 0 & 0\\ 0 & K_{p_y} & 0 & 0 & K_{d_y} & 0\\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# NMPC with terminal ingredients

#### Boundness of the FL local controller

$$\forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_f = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 : \mathbf{x}^\top P \mathbf{x} \le \delta \}, \text{ with } \delta = \lambda_{\min}(P) r^2, \ r^2 = \min_{q \in \{x, y, z\}} \left\{ \frac{U_q^2}{K_{pq}^2 + K_{dq}^2} \right\} :$$

 $\|\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) - \mathbf{u}_e\|^2 \leq \mathbf{x}^\top (K^\top K + 2\Gamma) \mathbf{x}$ 

$$\Gamma = \frac{1}{(-U_z + g)^2} K_{xy}^{\top} K_{xy}$$
$$K_{xy} = \begin{bmatrix} K_{p_x} & 0 & 0 & K_{d_x} & 0 & 0\\ 0 & K_{p_y} & 0 & 0 & K_{d_y} & 0\\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# NMPC with terminal ingredients

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{d}{dt}F(f(\mathbf{x})) + \ell(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x})) &= (\dot{\mathbf{x}}^{\top}P\mathbf{x} + \mathbf{x}^{\top}P\dot{\mathbf{x}}) + \mathbf{x}^{\top}Q\mathbf{x} + (\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) - \mathbf{u}_{e})^{\top}R(\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) - \mathbf{u}_{e}) \\ &\leq \mathbf{x}^{\top}(A_{K}^{\top}P + PA_{K})\mathbf{x} + \mathbf{x}^{\top}[Q + \lambda_{\mathsf{max}}(R)(K^{\top}K + 2\Gamma)]\mathbf{x} \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{\top}(\underbrace{A_{K}^{\top}P + PA_{K}})\mathbf{x} + \mathbf{x}^{\top}Q^{*}\mathbf{x} \\ &= \mathbf{x}^{\top}(-M + Q^{*})\mathbf{x} \leq 0 \end{aligned}$$

$$\ell(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{u}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_Q^2 + \|\mathbf{u} - \mathbf{u}_e\|_R^2, \quad F(\mathbf{x}) \triangleq \|\mathbf{x} - \mathbf{x}_e\|_P^2$$

$$\|\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) - \mathbf{u}_e\|^2 \le \mathbf{x}^{\top} (K^{\top} K + 2\Gamma) \mathbf{x}$$

$$\Rightarrow \|\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) - \mathbf{u}_e\|_R^2 \leq \lambda_{\mathsf{max}}(R) \|\mathbf{u}_{\mathsf{loc}}(\mathbf{x}) - \mathbf{u}_e\|^2 \leq \mathbf{x}^\top [\lambda_{\mathsf{max}}(R)(K^\top K + 2\Gamma)]\mathbf{x}$$

# Table of Contents

# 1 Introduction

2 Thrust-propelled vehicles with feedback linearization local controller

## ③ Terminal region enlargement

### 4 Simulation

- Simulation scenarios and parameters
- Simulation results

### 5 Discussions and Future work

→ < ∃ →</p>

### Lemma (how to find M)

 $\exists$  a square diagonal matrix  $M \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++}$ ,

$$M = \operatorname{diag}\{m_x, m_y, m_z, m_{v_x}, m_{v_y}, m_{v_z}\},\$$

and a symmetric matrix  $Q^* \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++}$ ,

$$Q^* = \begin{bmatrix} \operatorname{diag}\{Q^*_{1x}, Q^*_{1y}, Q^*_{1z}\} & \operatorname{diag}\{Q^*_{3x}, Q^*_{3y}, Q^*_{3z}\} \\ \operatorname{diag}\{Q^*_{3x}, Q^*_{3y}, Q^*_{3z}\} & \operatorname{diag}\{Q^*_{2x}, Q^*_{2y}, Q^*_{2z}\} \end{bmatrix},$$

where

$$Q^* \triangleq Q + \lambda_{\max}(R)(K^\top K + 2\Gamma),$$

satisfying  $M \succcurlyeq Q^* \succ \mathbf{0}$ .

э

### Sketch of the proof

=

• spec
$$(K^{\top}K) = \{0, 0, 0, K_{p_x}^2 + K_{d_x}^2, K_{p_y}^2 + K_{d_y}^2, K_{p_z}^2 + K_{d_z}^2\} \Rightarrow K^{\top}K \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$$
  
• spec $(K_{xy}^{\top}K_{xy}) = \{0, 0, 0, 0, K_{p_x}^2 + K_{d_x}^2, K_{p_y}^2 + K_{d_y}^2\} \Rightarrow K_{xy}^{\top}K_{xy} \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0} \Rightarrow \Gamma \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$   
•  $R \in \mathbb{S}^3_+ \Rightarrow R \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0} \Rightarrow \lambda_{\max}(R) \ge 0$   
 $\Rightarrow \lambda_{\max}(R)(K^{\top}K + 2\Gamma) \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$   
 $\Rightarrow Q^* \triangleq Q + \lambda_{\max}(R)(K^{\top}K + 2\Gamma) \succ \mathbf{0}$  (since  $Q \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++} \succ \mathbf{0}$ ).

#### Sketch of the proof (cont.)

Now, we want: 
$$M \succcurlyeq Q^* \Leftrightarrow (M - Q^*) \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$$
  
/e choose:  $m_q \ge Q_{1q}^* + |Q_{3q}^*| > 0, \ m_{v_q} \ge Q_{2q}^* + |Q_{3q}^*| > 0$   
 $\Rightarrow M \succcurlyeq Q^* \succ \mathbf{0}.$ 

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

### Sketch of the proof

• spec
$$(K^{\top}K) = \{0, 0, 0, K_{p_x}^2 + K_{d_x}^2, K_{p_y}^2 + K_{d_y}^2, K_{p_z}^2 + K_{d_z}^2\} \Rightarrow K^{\top}K \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$$
  
• spec $(K_{xy}^{\top}K_{xy}) = \{0, 0, 0, 0, K_{p_x}^2 + K_{d_x}^2, K_{p_y}^2 + K_{d_y}^2\} \Rightarrow K_{xy}^{\top}K_{xy} \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0} \Rightarrow \Gamma \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$   
•  $R \in \mathbb{S}^3_+ \Rightarrow R \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0} \Rightarrow \lambda_{\max}(R) \ge 0$   
 $\Rightarrow \lambda_{\max}(R)(K^{\top}K + 2\Gamma) \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$   
 $\Rightarrow Q^* \triangleq Q + \lambda_{\max}(R)(K^{\top}K + 2\Gamma) \succ \mathbf{0}$  (since  $Q \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++} \succ \mathbf{0}$ ).

### Sketch of the proof (cont.)

Now, we want: 
$$M \succcurlyeq Q^* \Leftrightarrow (M - Q^*) \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$$
  
We choose:  $m_q \ge Q_{1_q}^* + |Q_{3_q}^*| > 0, \ m_{v_q} \ge Q_{2_q}^* + |Q_{3_q}^*| > 0$   
 $\Rightarrow M \succcurlyeq Q^* \succ \mathbf{0}.$ 

### Proposition (how to find P having a defined M)

The solution of the Lyapunov equation is defined as a symmetric matrix  $P \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++}$ :

$$P \triangleq \begin{bmatrix} [P_1] & [P_3] \\ [P_3] & [P_2] \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} \operatorname{diag}\{P_{1_x}, P_{1_y}, P_{1_z}\} & \operatorname{diag}\{P_{3_x}, P_{3_y}, P_{3_z}\} \\ \operatorname{diag}\{P_{3_x}, P_{3_y}, P_{3_z}\} & \operatorname{diag}\{P_{2_x}, P_{2_y}, P_{2_z}\} \end{bmatrix},$$

whose entries are given by:

$$P_{1_q} = \frac{1}{2} \left( \frac{K_{d_q}}{K_{p_q}} - \frac{1}{K_{d_q}} \right) m_q + \frac{K_{p_q}}{2K_{d_q}} m_{v_q}, \tag{1a}$$

$$P_{2q} = \frac{m_q}{2K_{p_q}K_{d_q}} - \frac{m_{v_q}}{2K_{d_q}}, \quad P_{3q} = -\frac{m_q}{2K_{p_q}}, \tag{1b}$$

for  $q \in \{x, y, z\}$ .

< □ ▶ < □ ▶ < □ ▶ < □ ▶ < □ ▶</li>
 Nov 16, 2023

19

э

### Lemma (eigenvalues of P)

The spectrum of the matrix  $P \in \mathbb{S}^6_{++}$  composes of six positive eigenvalues:

$$\operatorname{spec}(P) = \{\lambda_{1_q}, \lambda_{2_q} : q \in \{x, y, z\}\},\$$

where each pair of eigenvalues is explicitly given by:

$$\{\lambda_{1_q}, \lambda_{2_q}\} = \left\{\frac{1}{2}\left(P_{1_q} + P_{2_q} \pm \sqrt{(P_{1_q} - P_{2_q})^2 + 4P_{3_q}^2}\right)\right\}$$

and 
$$\{P_{1_q}, P_{2_q}, P_{3_q} : q \in \{x, y, z\}\}$$
 are from (1).

# Terminal region enlargement

### Ellipsoid terminal set

$$\mathcal{X}_f = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 : \mathbf{x}^\top P \mathbf{x} \le \delta \},$$
  
with  $\delta = \lambda_{\min}(P)r^2.$ 

### Terminal ball

$$\mathcal{B}_f = \left\{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 \mid \|\mathbf{x}\|^2 \leq rac{\lambda_{\mathsf{min}}(P)}{\lambda_{\mathsf{max}}(P)} r^2 
ight\}.$$

#### Lemma

 $\mathcal{B}_f \subseteq \mathcal{X}_f.$ 



< □ > < @

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

э

# Terminal region enlargement

### Ellipsoid terminal set

$$\mathcal{X}_f = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 : \mathbf{x}^ op P \mathbf{x} \le \delta \},$$
  
with  $\delta = \lambda_{\min}(P) r^2.$ 

### Terminal ball

$$\mathcal{B}_f = \left\{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 \mid \|\mathbf{x}\|^2 \leq rac{\lambda_{\mathsf{min}}(P)}{\lambda_{\mathsf{max}}(P)} r^2 
ight\}.$$

#### Lemma

 $\mathcal{B}_f \subseteq \mathcal{X}_f.$ 

#### Proof

• 
$$\mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{B}_f \Rightarrow \lambda_{\max}(P) \|\mathbf{x}\|^2 \leq \lambda_{\min}(P)r^2$$
  
•  $\mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^6 \Rightarrow \|\mathbf{x}\|_P^2 \leq \lambda_{\max}(P) \|\mathbf{x}\|^2$   
 $\Rightarrow \|\mathbf{x}\|_P^2 \leq \lambda_{\max}(P) \|\mathbf{x}\|^2 \leq \lambda_{\min}(P)r^2$   
 $\Rightarrow \mathcal{B}_f \subseteq \mathcal{X}_f$ 


## Assumption

$$K_{p_q} \triangleq k_p, \ K_{d_q} \triangleq k_d, \ m_q \triangleq m_1, \ m_{v_q} \triangleq m_2, \ \forall q \in \{x, y, z\}.$$

$$\Rightarrow \lambda_{\min}(P) = \min_{q \in \{x,y,z\}} \{\lambda_{1_q}, \lambda_{2_q}\}, \ \lambda_{\max}(P) = \max_{q \in \{x,y,z\}} \{\lambda_{1_q}, \lambda_{2_q}\}.$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

< □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > 
Nov 16, 2023

22





Huu Thien Nguyen et al.



Huu Thien Nguyen et al.



Multicopter terminal region enlargement

26

#### **Proposition (infinity radius)**

The radius of the ball  $\mathcal{B}_f$  can be enlarged to infinity with appropriate feedback gains  $K_{p_q}, K_{d_q}$  and the matrix M satisfying the previous Assumption.



## Sketch of the proof

$$\begin{split} \lim_{(k_p,k_d)\to(0^-,0^-)} \bar{r}^2 &= \dots = \lim_{(k_p,k_d)\to(0^-,0^-)} \frac{-\sigma k_d^2 k_p - k_p^3 + 2k_p^2 \sigma - k_p \sigma^2}{\sigma^2 (k_p^2 + k_d^2)} U_{\min}^2 \\ &-\sigma k_d^2 k_p - k_p^3 + 2k_p^2 \sigma > 0 \\ \lim_{(k_p,k_d)\to(0^-,0^-)} \frac{-k_p}{k_p^2 + k_d^2} &= +\infty \end{split}$$
 when  $k_d^2 \to 0$  faster than  $k_p \to 0$ .

## Proposition (semi-globally asymptotic stability)

Suppose that the Assumptions are satisfied, the ellipsoid  $X_f$  can serve as the terminal set for the NMPC problem to achieve the semi-globally asymptotic stability.



# Semi-globally asymptotic stabilizing NMPC – Algorithm

- **0** data The compact set  $\mathcal{X}_0$  contains the equilibrium state  $\mathbf{x}_e$ ,  $U_q$   $(q \in \{x, y, z\})$
- 2 Calculate  $r_0 = d(\mathbf{x}_e, \mathcal{X}_0)$
- - $\bar{r} = \text{compute}_r_bar(k_p, k_d)$ 
    - $\textbf{O} \quad \text{Calculate } Q^* = Q + \lambda_{\max}(R)(K^\top K + 2\Gamma)$
    - ${\rm @ Specify}\ M \succcurlyeq Q^*$
    - **③** Determine P in the terminal cost as a function of  $k_p, k_d, m_1$ , and  $m_2$

• Calculate 
$$r^2 = \min_{q \in \{x,y,z\}} \left\{ \frac{U_q^2}{k_p^2 + k_d^2} \right\}$$

- **6** Calculate the radius of  $\mathcal{B}_f$ :  $\bar{r}^2 = \frac{\lambda_{\min}(P)}{\lambda_{\max}(P)}r^2$
- **(**) Construct the terminal set  $\mathcal{X}_f$
- **()** return P,  $\mathcal{X}_f$
- $\bigcirc$  Choose the MPC prediction horizon  $T_P$  which guarantees the recursive feasibility
- Solve the optimization problem
- **9** result NMPC solution  $\bar{\mathbf{u}}_t^*$

# Table of Contents

## Introduction

- 2 Thrust-propelled vehicles with feedback linearization local controller
- 3 Terminal region enlargement

## ④ Simulation

- Simulation scenarios and parameters
- Simulation results

### 5 Discussions and Future work

N 4 1 N

## • Scenario 1: quasi-infinite MPC (qsMPC-Chen and Allgöwer 1998)

- Scenario 2: the initial state is outside of the terminal set
- Scenario 3: the initial state is **inside** the terminal set<sup>7</sup>

- Scenario 1: quasi-infinite MPC (qsMPC-Chen and Allgöwer 1998)
- Scenario 2: the initial state is outside of the terminal set<sup>7</sup>
- Scenario 3: the initial state is inside the terminal set<sup>7</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup>Huu Thien Nguyen, Ngoc Thinh Nguyen, and Ionela Prodan (Jan. 2024). "Notes on the Terminal Region Enlargement of a Stabilizing NMPC Design for a Multicopter". In: Automatica 159, p. 111375. DOI: 10.1016/j.automatica.2023.111375 ← □ ▷ < ⊕ ▷ < ≧ ▷ < ≧ ▷ < ○ <

- Scenario 1: quasi-infinite MPC (qsMPC-Chen and Allgöwer 1998)
- Scenario 2: the initial state is outside of the terminal set<sup>7</sup>
- Scenario 3: the initial state is **inside** the terminal set<sup>7</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup>Huu Thien Nguyen, Ngoc Thinh Nguyen, and Ionela Prodan (Jan. 2024). "Notes on the Terminal Region Enlargement of a Stabilizing NMPC Design for a Multicopter". In: Automatica 159, p. 111375. DOI: 10.1016/j.automatica.2023.111375. ← □ ▷ < ♂ ▷ ▷ < ♡ ○ ○

# Simulation parameters

Parameters	Scenario 1 (qsMPC)	Scenario 2 (outer)	Scenario 3 (inner)
Q, $R$		$10 I_6$ , $I_3$	
$(k_p, k_d)$	(-2, -2)	(-2, -2)	(-0.75, -0.75)
$\max\{Q_{1_q}^* +  Q_{3_q}^* \}$	_	18.2103	11.1546
$\max\{Q_{2_q}^* +  Q_{3_q}^* \}$	_	18.2103	11.1546
M	_	$M = \begin{bmatrix} 20I_3 & 0 \\ 0 & 30I_3 \end{bmatrix}$	$M = \begin{bmatrix} 20I_3 & 0 \\ 0 & 30I_3 \end{bmatrix}$
Р	$P_{qs}$	$P = \begin{bmatrix} 30\boldsymbol{I}_3 & 5\boldsymbol{I}_3 \\ 5\boldsymbol{I}_3 & 10\boldsymbol{I}_3 \end{bmatrix}$	$P = \begin{bmatrix} 38.(3)I_3 & 13.(3)I_3 \\ 13.(3)I_3 & 37.(7)I_3 \end{bmatrix}$
r	_	r = 0.3845	r = 1.0253
$ar{r}$	_	$\bar{r} = 0.2045$	$\bar{r} = 0.7111$
$\kappa$ , $\alpha$	0.95, 0.0687	_	_
$T_p$	1.9s (19 steps)	1.1s (11 steps)	0.2s (2 steps)

$$\mathcal{U} = \left\{ 0 \le T \le 2g, \ |\phi| \le 10^\circ, \ |\theta| \le 10^\circ \right\}$$

Multicopter terminal region enlargement



The trajectories projected onto the y - z plane.



Multicopter terminal region enlargement

(本語) (本語)



The trajectories projected onto the y - z plane.

	Scen. 1	Scen. 2	Scen. 3
$vol\ (\mathcal{X}_f)$	$4.3766 \times 10^{-10}$	0.0025	2.0028
			< □ >

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

< 回 > < 回 > < 回 >



	Scen. 1	Scen. 2	Scen. 3
x	2.7	2.5	1.8
y	3	2.8	2
z	3.1	2.8	4.7

Table: The 2% settling time  $(t_s [s])$ .

Multicopter actual motion for the 3 scenarios.

\_

\_

Nov 16, 2023



	Scen. 1	Scen. 2	Scen. 3
$v_x$	2.8	2.6	2.1
$v_y$	3.1	2.9	2.4
$v_z$	3.3	3.0	4.3

Table: The 2% settling time  $(t_s [s])$ .

Multicopter velocity for the 3 scenarios.

Nov 16, 2023

 $oldsymbol{T} \left[m/s^2
ight]$ 109.5 $-_{1}T - _{2}T - _{3}T$ 9 8.5 105 $[\circ] \phi$ 0 -5 $_1\phi - _2\phi - _3\phi$ -10105 $[\circ]$ 0 -5 $\cdot \cdot \theta$  $_{2}\theta - _{3}\theta$ -100.5 1.5 2 3 3.5 4.5 5 5.5Ő 1 2.54 6 Time [s]

Multicopter control inputs for the 3 scenarios.



 $oldsymbol{T} \left[m/s^2
ight]$ 109.5 $-_{1}T - _{2}T - _{3}T$ 9 8.5 105 $\phi^{[\circ]}$ 0 -5 $\cdot_1 \phi$ - $-2\phi - 3\phi$ -10105 $[\circ] \theta$ 0 -5 ${}_1\theta$  ${}_{2}\theta$  $\cdot_3\theta$ -100.5 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4.5 5 5.5Ő 1 4 6 Time [s]

Multicopter control inputs for the 3 scenarios.

	Scen. 1	Scen. 2	Scen. 3			
Energy $E [m^2/s^3]$	588.6654	588.9833	588.3076			
			A      D      A      A     D     A     D     A     D     D     A     D     D     A     D     D     A     D	▶ ★ 콜 ▶ ★ 콜 ▶ .	- 王	9





Calculating time in the 3 scenarios.

	Scen. 1	Scen. 2	Scen. 3
$CT\left[s ight]$	7.0285	4.0765	1.1786
CT per step $[ms]$	115.2216	66.8271	19.3211

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

# Table of Contents

## Introduction

- 2 Thrust-propelled vehicles with feedback linearization local controller
- 3 Terminal region enlargement

### 4 Simulation

- Simulation scenarios and parameters
- Simulation results

## **5** Discussions and Future work

( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( )

#### Discussions

- An NMPC scheme for multicopters with semi-globally asymptotic stability
- The size of the terminal set is easily modified

#### Future work

- To explore full 6-dimensional scenarios (6D ellipsoids)
- To solve the trade-off between the size of the terminal set the prediction horizon
  - the convergence time

#### Discussions

- An NMPC scheme for multicopters with semi-globally asymptotic stability
- The size of the terminal set is easily modified

#### Future work

- To explore full 6-dimensional scenarios (6D ellipsoids)
- To solve the trade-off between the size of the terminal set the prediction horizon
  - the convergence time

( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( ) < ( )

## Acknowledgment

- FCT contract 2020.07959.BD.
- UPWIND-ATOL FCT project 2022.02801.PTDC.
- Portugal/France Cooperation Agreement Program 2021.09306.CBM.
- The PHC Alliance Hubert Curien Programme, France (PHC PESSOA, Projet no. 47913XD).
- Associate Laboratory ARISE LA/P/0112/2020, Base UIDB/00147/2020, and Programmatic UIDP/00147/2020 Funding of the R&D Unit SYSTEC.
- La Région, Pack Ambition Recherche 2021 PlanMAV and by the French National Research Agency in the framework of the «Investissements d'avenir» program «ANR-15-IDEX-02» and the LabEx PERSYVAL «ANR-11-LABX-0025-01».
- The German Ministry of Food and Agriculture (BMEL) Project No. 28DK133A20.
- Thanks to Prof. Fernando A. C. C. Fontes and Prof. Fernando Lobo Pereira for the discussions.



イロト 不得下 イヨト イヨト

## References I



Brunner, Florian D., Mircea Lazar, and Frank Allgower (July 2013). "Stabilizing Linear Model Predictive Control: On the Enlargement of the Terminal Set". In: 2013 European Control Conference (ECC). Zurich: IEEE, pp. 511–517. DOI: 10.23919/ECC.2013.6669436.

Cannon, Mark, Basil Kouvaritakis, and Venkatesh Deshmukh (Feb. 2004). "Enlargement of Polytopic Terminal Region in NMPC by Interpolation and Partial Invariance". In: Automatica 40.2, pp. 311–317. DOI: 10.1016/j.automatica.2003.10.004.

Chen, Hong and Frank Allgöwer (1998). "A Quasi-Infinite Horizon Nonlinear Model Predictive Control Scheme with Guaranteed Stability". In: Automatica 34.10, pp. 1205–1217. DOI: 10.1016/S0005-1098(98)00073-9.

Comelli, Román et al. (Oct. 2023). "Simplified Design of Practically Stable MPC Schemes". In: Systems & Control Letters 180, p. 105626. DOI: 10. 1016/j.sysconle.2023.105626.

De Doná, J.A. et al. (Sept. 2002). "Enlarged Terminal Sets Guaranteeing Stability of Receding Horizon Control". In: Systems & Control Letters 47.1, pp. 57–63. DOI: 10.1016/S0167-6911(02)00175-5.

Eyüböğlu, Mert and Mircea Lazar (2022). "sNMPC: A Matlab Toolbox for Computing Stabilizing Terminal Costs and Sets". In: *IFAC-PapersOnLine* 55.30, pp. 19–24. DOI: 10.1016/j.ifacol.2022.11.022.

Gantmacher, Feliks Rouminovich (1960). "The Theory of Matrices. Volume One". In: Translated by KA Hirsch, Chelsea Publishing Company, Printed in USA, Card Nr. 59-11779, ISBN: 8284-0131-4.

◆□▶ ◆□▶ ◆三▶ ◆三▶ 三三 - のへで

Grüne, Lars and Jürgen Pannek (2017). Nonlinear Model Predictive Control. Communications and Control Engineering. Cham: Springer International Publishing. DOI: 10.1007/978-3-319-46024-6.

- Limon, D., T. Alamo, and E.F. Camacho (Apr. 2005). "Enlarging the Domain of Attraction of MPC Controllers". In: Automatica 41.4, pp. 629–635. DOI: 10.1016/j.automatica.2004.10.011.
- Mayne, David Q. et al. (2000). "Constrained Model Predictive Control: Stability and Optimality". In: Automatica 36.6, pp. 789–814. DOI: 10.1016/ 80005-1098(99)00214-9.
- Nguyen, Huu Thien, Ngoc Thinh Nguyen, and Ionela Prodan (Jan. 2024). "Notes on the Terminal Region Enlargement of a Stabilizing NMPC Design for a Multicopter". In: Automatica 159, p. 111375. DOI: 10.1016/j.automatica.2023.111375.
- Nguyen, Ngoc Thinh, Ionela Prodan, and Laurent Lefevre (2021). "Stability Guarantees for Translational Thrust-Propelled Vehicles Dynamics Through NMPC Designs". In: IEEE Transactions on Control Systems Technology 29, pp. 207–219. DOI: 10.1109/TCST.2020.2974146.
- Nguyen, Ngoc Thinh, Ionela Prodan, and Laurent Lefevre (June 2020). "Flat Trajectory Design and Tracking with Saturation Guarantees: A Nano-Drone Application". In: International Journal of Control 93.6, pp. 1266–1279. DOI: 10.1080/00207179.2018.1502474.

# THANK YOU

# QUESTIONS AND DISCUSSIONS

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

• • = • • = •

### Sketch of the proof (cont.)

Now, we want:  $M \succcurlyeq Q^* \Leftrightarrow (M - Q^*) \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}$ 

$$\Leftrightarrow \mathbf{x}^{\top} (M - Q^*) \mathbf{x} = \sum_{q \in \{x, y, z\}} [(m_q - Q^*_{1_q})q^2 + (m_{v_q} - Q^*_{2_q})v_q^2 - 2Q^*_{3_q}qv_q] \ge 0$$

$$\Leftrightarrow (m_q - Q_{1_q}^*)q^2 + (m_{v_q} - Q_{2_q}^*)v_q^2 - 2Q_{3_q}^*qv_q \ge 0, \ \forall q \in \{x, y, z\}$$

$$\Leftrightarrow \begin{bmatrix} m_q - Q_{1_q}^* & -Q_{3_q}^* \\ -Q_{3_q}^* & m_{v_q} - Q_{2_q}^* \end{bmatrix} \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}, \ \forall q \in \{x, y, z\}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

< □ > < ⊡ > < ⊇ > < ⊇ >
 Nov 16, 2023

#### Positive semi-definiteness (Gantmacher 1960)

A quadratic form is positive semi-definite iff all the principal minors of its coefficient matrix are non-negative

## Sketch of the proof (cont.)

$$\begin{bmatrix} m_q - Q_{1_q}^* & -Q_{3_q}^* \\ -Q_{3_q}^* & m_{v_q} - Q_{2_q}^* \end{bmatrix} \succcurlyeq \mathbf{0}, \ \forall q \in \{x, y, z\}$$

$$\Leftrightarrow m_q - Q_{1_q}^* \ge 0, m_{v_q} - Q_{2_q}^* \ge 0, (m_q - Q_{1_q}^*)(m_{v_q} - Q_{2_q}^*) \ge Q_{3_q}^{*2}, \ \forall q \in \{x, y, z\}$$

$$From \text{ calculation: } \{Q_{1_q}^*, Q_{2_q}^* > 0 : q \in \{x, y, z\}\}$$

$$We \text{ choose: } m_q \ge Q_{1_q}^* + |Q_{3_q}^*| > 0, \ m_{v_q} \ge Q_{2_q}^* + |Q_{3_q}^*| > 0$$

$$\Rightarrow M \succcurlyeq Q^* \succ \mathbf{0}.$$

Nov 16, 2023

## Sketch of the proof (cont.)

$$\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{0} & [K_p] \\ I_3 & [K_d] \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} [P_1] & [P_3] \\ [P_3] & [P_2] \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} [P_1] & [P_3] \\ [P_3] & [P_2] \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{0} & I_3 \\ [K_p] & [K_d] \end{bmatrix}$$
$$+ \begin{bmatrix} [m] & \mathbf{0} \\ \mathbf{0} & [m_v] \end{bmatrix} = \mathbf{0}$$
$$\Rightarrow \begin{cases} 2[K_p] \circ [P_3] + [m] &= \mathbf{0}, \\ [P_1] + [K_p] \circ [P_2] + [K_d] \circ [P_3] &= \mathbf{0}, \\ 2[P_3] + 2[K_d] \circ [P_2] + [m_v] &= \mathbf{0}. \end{cases}$$
$$\Rightarrow \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & 2[K_p] \\ \mathbf{0} & 2[K_d] & 2\mathbf{I}_3 \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} P_1 \\ P_2 \end{bmatrix} = -\begin{bmatrix} m \\ m_n \end{bmatrix}$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{0} & \mathbf{0} & 2[K_p] \\ \mathbf{0} & 2[K_d] & 2\mathbf{I}_3 \\ \mathbf{I}_3 & [K_p] & [K_d] \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{I} & \mathbf{1} \\ \mathbf{P}_2 \\ \mathbf{P}_3 \end{bmatrix} = -\begin{bmatrix} \mathbf{m} \\ \mathbf{m} \\ \mathbf{0} \end{bmatrix}$$

### **Element-wise product**

$$A = \begin{bmatrix} a_{11} & a_{12} & \dots & a_{1n} \\ a_{21} & a_{22} & \dots & a_{2n} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ a_{m1} & a_{m2} & \dots & a_{mn} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$B = \begin{bmatrix} b_{11} & b_{12} & \dots & b_{1n} \\ b_{21} & b_{22} & \dots & b_{2n} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ b_{m1} & b_{m2} & \dots & b_{mn} \end{bmatrix}$$
$$A \circ B = \begin{bmatrix} a_{11}b_{11} & a_{12}b_{12} & \dots & a_{1n}b_{1n} \\ a_{21}b_{21} & a_{22}b_{22} & \dots & a_{2n}b_{2n} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ a_{m1}b_{m1} & a_{m2}b_{m2} & \dots & a_{mn}b_{mn} \end{bmatrix}$$

Nov 16, 2023

## Sketch of the proof

$$\det(P - \lambda \mathbf{I}_{6}) = 0$$
  

$$\Rightarrow \lambda^{2} \mathbf{I}_{3} - \lambda([P_{1}] + [P_{2}]) + ([P_{1}] \circ [P_{2}] - [P_{3}] \circ [P_{3}]) = \mathbf{0}$$
  

$$\Rightarrow \left\{\lambda^{2} - \lambda(P_{1q} + P_{2q}) + (P_{1q}P_{2q} - P_{3q}^{2}) = 0 : q \in \{x, y, z\}\right\}$$
  

$$\Rightarrow \left\{\lambda_{1q}, \lambda_{2q}\right\} = \left\{\frac{1}{2}\left(P_{1q} + P_{2q} \pm \sqrt{(P_{1q} - P_{2q})^{2} + 4P_{3q}^{2}}\right)\right\}, q \in \{x, y, z\}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

Nov 16, 2023

## Sketch of the proof (cont.)

$$\begin{split} \left\{ \begin{aligned} \lambda^2 - \lambda(P_{1_q} + P_{2_q}) + (P_{1_q}P_{2_q} - P_{3_q}^2) &= 0 : q \in \{x, y, z\} \right\} \\ \left\{ \begin{aligned} \lambda_{1_q} + \lambda_{2_q} &= P_{1_q} + P_{2_q} = \frac{m_q(K_{d_q}^2 - K_{p_q} + 1) + m_{v_q}(K_{p_q}^2 - K_{p_q})}{2K_{p_q}K_{d_q}} > 0 \\ \lambda_{1_q}\lambda_{2_q} &= P_{1_q}P_{2_q} - P_{3_q}^2 = \frac{-m_q^2 + m_q m_{v_q}(2K_{p_q} - K_{d_q}^2) - m_{v_q}^2 K_{p_q}^2}{4K_{p_q}K_{d_q}^2} > 0 \\ &\Rightarrow \lambda_{1_q} \text{ and } \lambda_{2_q} \text{ are positive } \Rightarrow P \succ \mathbf{0} \end{aligned}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

Multicopter terminal region enlargement

• ◆ 酉 ▶ ◆ ≧ ▶ ◆ ≧ ▶ Nov 16, 2023

< □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > < □ > 
Nov 16, 2023
## Quasi-inifinite MPC (Chen and Allgöwer 1998) – Algorithm

data f, x<sub>e</sub>, u<sub>e</sub>
Calculate A<sub>qs</sub> = ∂f/∂x (x<sub>e</sub>, u<sub>e</sub>) ∈ ℝ<sup>6×6</sup>, B<sub>qs</sub> = ∂f/∂u (x<sub>e</sub>, u<sub>e</sub>) ∈ ℝ<sup>6×3</sup>
Choose the feedback gain K<sub>qs</sub> ∈ ℝ<sup>3×6</sup>
Calculate A<sub>Kqs</sub> = A<sub>qs</sub> + B<sub>qs</sub>K<sub>qs</sub>
Choose κ satisfying 0 < κ < -λ<sub>max</sub>(A<sub>Kqs</sub>) (Chen and Allgöwer 1998, eqn. (10))
Choose Q ∈ S<sup>6</sup><sub>++</sub>, R ∈ S<sup>3</sup><sub>+</sub>
Solve a Ricatti equation for P<sub>qs</sub> (Chen and Allgöwer 1998, eqn. (9))
Find the largest α<sub>1</sub> > 0 such that Kx ∈ U for x in x<sup>T</sup>P<sub>qs</sub>x ≤ α<sub>1</sub>
Construct the terminal invariant set X<sub>fqs</sub>:

$$\mathcal{X}_{f_{qs}} = \{ \mathbf{x} \in \mathbb{R}^n \mid \mathbf{x}^\top P_{qs} \mathbf{x} \le \alpha \},\$$

with  $\alpha \in (0, \alpha_1]$  is a solution of an optimization problem:

$$\begin{split} \Lambda &= \max_{\mathbf{x}} \{ \mathbf{x}^{\top} P_{qs} \left[ f(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{u}_{qs}) - A_{K_{qs}} \mathbf{x} \right] - \kappa \mathbf{x}^{\top} P_{qs} \mathbf{x} \}, \\ \text{s.t.} \quad \mathbf{u}_{qs} \in \mathcal{U} \ \forall \mathbf{x} \in \mathcal{X}_{f_{qs}}, \ \mathbf{x}^{\top} P_{qs} \mathbf{x} \leq \alpha, \ \Lambda \leq 0. \end{split}$$

Huu Thien Nguyen et al.

 $\mathbf{0}$  result  $\mathcal{X}_{f_{as}}$ 

医尿道医尿道 医

## Simulation parameters



Nov 16, 2023

ほん 不良い